
EDUCATIONAL EXCELLENCE COUNCIL COMMITTEE 
MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY, MAY 14, 2013 
10:00 AM 

MEDIA BRlEFING ROOM, CITY HALL 

Members Present: Councilmember Ray Lopez, Chair, District 6 
Councilmember Ivy R. Taylor, District 2 
Councilmember Leticia Ozuna, District 3 

Members Absent: Councilmember Rey Saldaiia, District 4 
Councilmember Cris Medina, District 7 

Staff Present: Peter Zanoni, Deputy City Manager; Gloria Hurtado, Assistant 
City Manager; Melody Woosley, Interim Director o/Department 
o/Human Services; Mikel Brightman, DHS Head Start 
Administrator; Ramiro Salazar, Director 0/ San Antonio Public 
Library; Viki Ash, San Antonio Public Library Children 's 
Services Coordinator; Shreya Shah, Assistant City Attorney; 
Martha Lambaria, Office o/the City Clerk 

Call To Order 

Chairman Lopez called the meeting to order. 

1. Citizens To Be Heard 

No citizens were present to speak. 

2. Approval of minutes of the March 26, 2013 Educational Excellence Council 
Committee Meeting 

Councilmember Taylor moved to approve the Minutes of the March 26, 2013 Educational 
Excellence Council Committee Meeting. Councilmember Ozuna seconded the motion. Motion 
carried unanimously by those present. 

3. Briefing and possible action on the Head Start program related to: results of a 
health and safety site assessment; requests for approval of a program procedure 
related to Policy Council Member reimbursement and the 2012 - 2013 Head 
Start Self-Assessment and Action Plan; and preliminary award notification from 
the Department of Health and Human Services [Melody Woosley, Interim 
Director, Department of Human Services] 

Melody Woosley, Interim Director of Department of Human Services (DHS) provided 
information on the results of a Health and Safety Site Assessment. She requested approval of the 
2012-2013 Head Start Self-Assessment and Action Plan; and Procedure for reimbursement of 
reasonable expenses for low-income Policy Council Members. In addition, she presented 
preliminary award information for the Head Start Designation Renewal System. 

Page I of 4 



Chairman Lopez asked of the data integrity as it relates to creating the Individualized Education 
Program (lEP). He also asked of the tool utilized for measuring quality of individual plan for 
each child. Mikel Brightman, Head Start Administrator, responded that the important distinction 
is finding errors and ensuring that data was entered accurately. She noted that if services were 
lacking, work with University Health System (UHS) and Metro Health would be completed to 
address issues. In response to Chairman Lopez, Ms. Brightman stated that the rationale used for 
not having the data collected and input effectively was human error. 

In response to Councilmember Ozuna, Ms. Brightman responded that there were currently 24 
members who sat on the Head Start Policy Council and that they represented multiple school 
districts and service providers to include parents and stakeholders. Councilmember Ozuna asked 
for the breakdown between parents and stakeholders. Ms. Brightman reported that by standard, 
the breakdown must be greater than 50% parents but that it was currently 70% parents and they 
met monthly. Councilmember Ozuna asked of the reason for the Policy Council Member 
Reimbursement request. Ms. Woosley clarified that the reimbursement request was for low
income member's mileage and for childcare in the evenings during meetings. She noted that the 
meetings were held at the Very Early Childhood Center on the Eastside and that some parents 
must drive from their homes on other sides of town. Ms. Hurtado added that dinner was also 
provided to the members during the meetings. 

Chairman Lopez expanded on parent engagement and recommended asking members/parents of 
the Policy Council to attend the Educational Excellence Council Committee Meeting. He 
articulated the importance of their input. He asked ifDHS would be traveling to Washington to 
speak with Health and Human Services (HHS) regarding designation renewal negotiations. Ms. 
Hurtado stated that Yvette Sanchez Fuentes, Director of the Office of Head Start (OHS) in 
Washington, DC had met with DHS in Dallas the previous day. She informed the Committee 
that there would not be 3,400 slots renewed but that there was a commitment for 3,000 slots 
allocated. Ms. Hurtado added that DHS had consulted with Linda Smith from Patton Boggs and 
they had conferred with the Deputy Assistant Secretary and the Assistant Secretary. Chairman 
Lopez encouraged taking an aggressive position toward making Early Childhood Education a 
priority. 

Councilmember Ozuna expressed concern with the deficit funding for slots renewed. In 
response to Councilmember Ozuna, Ms. Hurtado stated that some of the unserved would qualify 
for Pre-K 4 SA. She noted that nationally, Head Start only served 40% of the eligible population 
and that it was fortunate that in Texas; there was State Pre-K and Pre-K 4 SA. She indicated that 
it was a national issue. 

Councilmember Ozuna moved to approve the 2012-2013 Self Assessment and Action Plan 
report; Procedure for reimbursement of reasonable expenses for low income Policy Council 
members and to move forward a final negotiated award to City Council in June for approval of 
budget and contracts. Councilmember Taylor seconded the motion. Motion carried 
unanimously by those present. 

Page 2 of 4 



4. San Antonio Public Library (SAPL) offering access to new electronic content: 
BookFlix and TrueFlix [Ramiro Salazar, Director, San Antonio Public Library] 

Ramiro Salazar, Director of San Antonio Public Library (SAPL) stated that the SAPL continues 
to look at ways of providing and expanding digital content to the community. He noted the 
importance of understanding the expectation and demand of the community to provide both print 
material and digital content. He introduced Dr. Viki Ash, SAPL Children's Services 
Coordinator. Dr. Ash provided a briefing on the SAPL Electronic Content for Children to 
include: 

• Purpose 
• BookFlix 
• TrueFlix 

Councilwoman Ozuna expressed her enthusiasm regarding the electronic content at SAPL. She 
asked if BookFlix and TrueFlix had been tested with iPad or Pad Technologies. Dr. Ash 
responded that they had and noted that Pad Technologies would require Photon Software, which 
sells for $4.99. She ensured the Committee of informing the community of the Photon Software 
available for Pad Technologies. Councilmember Ozuna asked of the Throughput Component to 
run electronic books. Dr. Ash and Mr. Salazar concurred that SAPL is working very closely 
with Information Technology Services Department (ITSD) and is meeting with ITSD Leadership 
later today to discuss and address issues. 

Chairman Lopez asked if SAPL was utilizing technologies similar to Independent School District 
(ISO) Libraries. Mr. Salazar replied that they were not doing so at this time but were planning 
for same in the future. Chairman Lopez recommended working closely with rSDs. Dr. Ash 
noted that iPads were introduced in the SAPLs and that they were trying to keep up with 
technologies that were available to children. 

Councilmember Ozuna asked of the number of iPads for use in the Library. Dr. Ash noted that 
SAPL owns 20 iPads. She indicated that iPads were not checked out to individuals but rather 
available as limited media. 

Chairman Lopez thanked Mr. Salazar and Dr. Ash for the presentation and their work. He noted 
that electronic technology was clearly the new trend that was here to stay. 

At this time, Mr. Zanoni provided an update on the Early Childhood Education Municipal 
Development Corporation regarding Curriculum. He reported that nine national vendors had 
submitted Curriculum proposals. He stated that of those nine proposals, four finalists were 
selected and placed on public display. He noted that the four finalists selected were: 1) Frog 
Street; 2) Scholastic; 3) Pearson; and 4) McGraw. In addition, he indicated that the Curriculum 
Review Committee (CRC) had interviewed the four finalists. He concluded that the process was 
to review Frog Street with the Academic Readiness Sub Committee and to recommend Frog 
Street as the selected Curriculum to the full Board on May 21,2013. 

In response to Chairman Lopez, Mr. Zanoni, responded that Frog Street would provide technical 
training to teachers. Chairman Lopez confirmed that technical support would be ongoing. 

Page30f4 



5. Adjourn 

There being no further discussion, the meeting was adjourned at 11 :07 am. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

~mfM.;j14. fj{)rJ2~ 
Martha G. Lambaria 
Office of the City Clerk 

Ray Lopez, Chairman 

Page4of 4 


